ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVMM TTEE
April 12, 2005
8:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative Jim El ki ns
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Jay Ranras
Representative Berta Gardner
Representati ve Max G uenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG( S)

State Comm ssion for Human Ri ghts

M Chris Hayes - Fairbanks

Lester Charles Lunceford - Wittier
Barbara J. "Tame" Mller - Wasilla
Randal | H. El edge - Anchorage

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

HOUSE BI LL NO. 215

"An Act relating to the investnent responsibilities of the
Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation; relating to regulations
proposed and adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Al aska
Per manent Fund Corporation and providing procedures for the
adoption of regulations by the board; and providing for an
effective date."

- MOVED HB 215 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 238

"An Act relating to contribution rates for enployers and nenbers
in the defined benefit plans of the teachers' retirenment system
and the public enployees' retirement system and to the ad-hoc
post-retirenment pension adjustnent in the teachers' retirenent

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 12, 2005



system requiring insurance plans provided to nenbers of the
teachers' retirement system the judicial retirement system the
public enployees' retirenment system and the forner elected
public officials retirenent system to provide a list of
preferred drugs; relating to defined contribution plans for
menbers of the teachers' retirement system and the public
enpl oyees' retirement system and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 87
"An Act relating to notor vehicle safety belt violations."

- MOVED HCS SB 87(STA) OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 167
"An Act relating to providing a death certificate for a deceased
veteran w thout cost."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 160
"An Act limting the use of nobney of the state and its political
subdi visions to affect an election.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 215

SHORT TI TLE: PERM FUND CORP. | NVESTMENTS/ REGULATI ONS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) ROKEBERG BY REQUEST

03/ 09/ 05 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 09/ 05 (H) STA, FIN
04/ 12/ 05 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAP| TOL 106

BILL: HB 238
SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C EMPLOYEE/ TEACHER RETI REMENT
SPONSOR(s): STATE AFFAI RS

03/ 30/ 05 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 30/ 05 (H) STA, FIN

03/ 31/ 05 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 31/ 05 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 31/ 05 (H) M NUTE( STA)

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 12, 2005



04/ 02/ 05 (H STA AT 10: 00 AM CAPI TCL 106
04/ 02/ 05 (H Heard & Held

04/ 02/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

04/ 05/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
04/ 05/ 05 (H Heard & Held

04/ 05/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

04/ 07/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
04/ 07/ 05 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
04/ 09/ 05 (H STA AT 9:30 AM CAPI TOL 106
04/ 09/ 05 (H Heard & Held

04/ 09/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

04/ 12/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: SB 87

SHORT TI TLE: SEAT BELT VI OLATI ON AS PRI MARY OFFENSE

SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(s) BUNDE

02/ 02/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 02/ 05 (S) STA, JUD

02/ 17/ 05 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 17/ 05 (S) Moved SB 87 Qut of Committee
02/ 17/ 05 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 18/ 05 (S) STA RPT 2DP 2NR

02/ 18/ 05 (S) NR. THERRI AULT, HUGG NS

02/ 18/ 05 (S) DP: ELTON, WAGONER

03/ 01/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 01/ 05 (S) Moved SB 87 Qut of Committee
03/ 01/ 05 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 02/ 05 (S) JUD RPT 3DP 2NR

03/ 02/ 05 (S) DP: SEEKI NS, FRENCH, GUESS

03/ 02/ 05 (S) NR. THERRI AULT, HUGG NS

03/ 03/ 05 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 03/ 05 (S) VERSI ON: SB 87

03/ 04/ 05 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 04/ 05 (H) STA, JUD

03/ 19/ 05 (H) STA AT 9:30 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 19/ 05 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 19/ 05 (H) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 12/ 05 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

M CHRI S HAYES

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Human Rights
Conmi ssi on.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 12, 2005



LESTER CHARLES LUNCEFORD

VWhittier, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Human Rights
Conmi ssi on.

BARBARA J. "TAM E" M LLER

Wasi |l a, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Human Rights
Comm ssi on.

RANDALL H. ELEDGE

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Human Rights
Comm ssi on.

M CHAEL J. BURNS, Executive Director

Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation

Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 215 on behalf of the
depart nment.

LAURA ACHEE, Research and Conmmuni cati ons Liai son

Al aska Permanent Fund Cor porati on

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on behalf of the
departnent during the hearing of HB 215.

KATHERI NE SHOWS, St af f

to Representative Paul Seaton

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided clarification during the hearing
on HB 238, on behalf of Representative Seaton, sponsor.

MR. BRAD LAWSON

Mercer Human Resource Consulting

Seattl e, Washington

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Reviewed the projected values for health
rei nbursenent accounts prepared by Mercer Resource Consulting,
on behalf of the Division of Retirement & Benefits, during the
heari ng on HB 238.

MELANI E M LLHORN, Director

Heal th Benefits Section
Di vision of Retirenent & Benefits

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 12, 2005



Depart ment of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Ofered closing remarks on behalf of the
di vi sion during the hearing on HB 238.

SENATOR CON BUNDE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of SB 87.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:03 a.m Representatives Gatto
El kins, Lynn, and Seaton were present at the call to order.
Representatives Ranras, Gardner, and Guenberg arrived as the
meeting was in progress.

CONFI RMATI ON HEARI NG( S)

Human Ri ghts Conm ssi on

CHAI R SEATON announced the first order of Dbusiness, the
confirmation hearings for appointees to the Human Rights
Comm ssi on.

8:04:47 AM

[Due to technical difficulties, the portion of M. Hayes
testinmony from 8:04:22 to 8:05:40 has been taken from Gavel to
Gavel . ]

M CHRI S HAYES - Fairbanks, Al aska

M CHRI'S HAYES, appointee to the Human Rights Comm ssion, told
the conmttee that she has lived in Al aska virtually her whole

life and loves the state. She said she wants to ensure that
peopl e are guaranteed human rights and are not discrimnated
agai nst. She said many cities have established their own human

rights comm ssions that work in concert with the state's Hunman
Ri ghts Comm ssi on. Ms. Hayes stated her belief that she would
offer a needed perspective to the conm ssion, because she is a
fair-m nded person.

8: 05: 56 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 12, 2005



CHAI R SEATON noted that M. Hayes is a current nmenber of the
U.S. Comm ssion on Cvil Rights.

8:06: 04 AM

MS. HAYES said she is a nenber of the "area regional council of
the area regional commttee."” She said the group neets only
about twce a year, but is active when funding is available.
She |isted sone of the issues that the group addressed.

8:07:07 AM

M5. HAYES, in response to a question from Representative Gatto,
said "CO@C'" - an acronym witten on her resune - stands for
Church of God in Christ. She offered details regarding COd C,
including that its nenbers believe that everyone has the right
to believe what they want.

8:07:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that M. Hayes had said the civil
rights group dealt with the issue of exit exans, and he asked
her how that relates to civil rights.

8:07:59 AM

M5. HAYES replied that it's an issue of discrimnation. She
explained, "It's not so much the exam but the consequences of
not passing it."

8:08: 46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked, "Is it discrimnation if everyone is
subject to the sane rul es?”

8:09: 01 AM

M5. HAYES answered, "If it's the law and the rule? No, it
woul dn't be discrimnation unless it goes against the basic
human rights.” She said there have been laws in the past that
have been discrimnatory in nature. She said issues are dealt
wth on a case-by-case basis. In response to a followup

guestion from Representative Gatto, she explained that the
previously nentioned exit exam was questioned by sone Native
Al askan groups who felt that the resources for learning in
preparation for the test were not being nade avail abl e.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 12, 2005



8:10: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to forward the confirmation of M
Chris Hayes [to the joint session of the House and Senate for
confirmation]. There being no objection, the confirmation was
advanced fromthe House State Affairs Standing Conmtt ee.

LESTER CHARLES LUNCEFORD - Whittier, Al aska

8:11:41 AM

LESTER CHARLES LUNCEFORD, appointee to the Human Rights
Comm ssion, said he has served two years on the conm ssion and

has been reappointed by the governor for a second term He
reviewed that his background has been that of a career police
of ficer. He was the former chief of police for the Gty of

VWhittier and is currently the mayor for that city, but his
paying job is as a real estate manager for the Al aska Railroad
Corporation. He stated that he has a wide variety of interests
and experience and thinks his |aw enforcenment background would
be useful on the comm ssion. He entertained questions from the
conmittee.

8:13:34 AM

MR. LUNCEFCORD, in response to a question from Representative
Gatto, listed the top three discrimnatory acts as: sexual
[ harassnment], age discrimnation, and race discrimnation.

8:14:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER nmoved to forward the confirmation of
Lester Charles Lunceford to the joint session of the House and
Senate for confirmation. There being no objection, the
confirmati on was advanced from the House State Affairs Standing
Conmi ttee.

BARBARA J. "TAME'" MLLER - Wasilla, Al aska

8:14:45 AM

BARBARA J. "TAME' MLLER appointee to the Human Rights
Comm ssion, told the commttee that she has been a resident of
Al aska for 44 years. She said she is a retired teacher whose
work in the classroom afforded her the opportunity to ensure
that all her students were treated equally. M. MIller said she
| ooks for ways to enhance her comunity. In response to a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 12, 2005



guestion from Chair Seaton, she said she has not previously
served on the commi ssion, but served on [the National Education
Associ ation, Al aska branch (NEA-Alaska)] for 18 years - 12 of
t hose years as its president.

8:16: 25 AM

CHAIR SEATON noted that M. Mller's application form is
included in the conmttee packet.

8:16: 54 AM

M5. MLLER, in response to a question from Representative
Gardner regarding Ms. Mller's NRECA certification, explained
that NRECA stands for "National Rural Electric Cooperative
Associ ation."

8:17:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ms. MIller if she or anyone she
knows has ever been party to an adjudication before the Human
Rights Comm ssion or any other local human rights comm ssion
because of a discrimnation issue.

8:17:40 AM

M5. M LLER responded that she doesn't believe so. She expl ai ned
that if there were any issues during her tinme serving wth [ NEA-
Al aska], they were probably handl ed by staff.

8:17:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked Ms. MIIer | f she has any
experience directly related to civil rights.

8:18: 02 AM

M5. MLLER reiterated that, as a teacher, she practiced her firm
belief that every student deserves to be treated equally.

8:18: 30 AM

CHAI R SEATON remarked that it's nice to see such diversity of
candi dat es, because that's probably what is needed on the Human
Ri ghts Conmm ssi on.

8:19: 06 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 12, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER nmoved to forward the confirmation of
Barbara J. "Tame" MIller to the joint session of the House and
Senate for confirmation. There being no objection, the
confirmati on was advanced from the House State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee.

RANDALL H. ELEDGE - Anchorage, Al aska

8:19:35 AM

RANDALL H. ELEDGE, appointee to the Human R ghts Comm ssion,
noted that he is a 23-year resident of Alaska who will bring his
busi ness experience to the comm ssion. He expressed his desire
to serve on the conmission to "give back to the state sone of
what it's given to me and ny famly."

8:20: 33 AM

CHAIR SEATON noted that M. Eledge had sat on the board of
directors for the Susitna Grl Scouts.

8:20: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG reiterated his question regarding
experience with discrimnation issues before the Human Rights
Comm ssion or any other related comm ssion.

8:21: 07 AM

MR. ELEDGE said he renenbers sone nanes that were brought
forward, but they were not personal acquaintances. In response
to further questions from Representative Guenberg, he offered
definitions for sone of the acronyns found in his resune.

8:22:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER nmoved to forward the confirmation of
Randall H Eledge to the joint session of the House and Senate
for confirmation. There being no objection, the confirmation
was advanced fromthe House State Affairs Standing Commttee.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from 8:23:10 AMto 8:24: 38 AM

8:25: 01 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- April 12, 2005



CHAI R SEATON di scussed the schedule for the renmainder of the
meet i ng.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from 8:25:44 AMto 8:27:44 AM

HB 215- PERM FUND CORP. | NVESTMENTS/ REGULATI ONS

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
Bl LL NO. 215, "An Act rel ating to t he i nvest ment
responsibilities of the Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation

relating to regulations proposed and adopted by the Board of
Trustees of the Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation and providing
procedures for the adoption of regulations by the board; and
providing for an effective date."

8:28: 44 AM

M CHAEL J. BURNS, Executive Director, Al aska Pernmanent Fund
Cor poration, Departnent of Revenue, presented HB 215 on behalf

of the departnent. He said the bill would change the [I|egal]
list of permssible investnents for the permanent fund currently
found in statute to "the prudent-investor rule.” He noted that
currently, 45 of the 50 states' pension funds, including
Al aska's, wuse the [prudent-investor] rule. He said Al aska's

Public Enpl oyees’ Retirement System (PERS) and Teachers'
Retirement System (TRS) have no statutory guideline, but use the
[ prudent -i nvestor] rule. He said when the fund was originally
created, it was 100 percent in fixed incone, which nmade sense at
the time. Over tine, investnents have been liberalized, and the
fund's performance has reacted positively to that. Today, he
enphasi zed, the statutory list is actually inpeding progress,
"causing us to take higher risks for lower returns.”

MR. BURNS directed attention to page 4 of a handout from the
Al aska Permanent Fund, included in the conmttee packet, which
is entitled, "Reducing R sk, Increasing Return." On page 4 is a
graph called, "Efficient Frontier." He noted that the | ower
blue line shows the expected returns of various asset m xes, and
the blue square shows "were we are today." He added that that's
where the trustees nmade their asset allocation, in [March 2004].

He explained that the vertical axis shows "expected historica

returns" and the horizontal axis shows "increase in risk"™ from
left to right. He continued as foll ows:

So, if you go directly above the blue box to the

purple box [showi ng standard deviation], that's the
efficient frontier wthout a statutory list; that is

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 12, 2005



the return that we could get today for exactly the
same risk we are taking. O conversely, if you | ook
to the left at the green box [showing expected
return], we could get the sane return we're getting
today for that nmuch less risk. So, the statutory Ilist
IS putting us in a position where we are taking nore
risk for less return.

8:32: 30 AM

MR BURNS, in response to a question from Representative
Gardner, explained that the nunbers 1-10 along the blue and red
lines stand for different asset nmxes that the trustees would
| ook at. He added, "W |anded on nunber 8, and that's probably
55 percent equities [and] ... 35 percent bonds." He i ndicated
that he was also referring to page 5 of the handout. He said
"That's how the efficient frontier is - the different m xes of
assets are those points along there, and we've highlighted the
square one, because that's the one we decided on a year ago."
He added, "Those are driven by the historical returns of the
vari ous asset categories."”

8:33:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER responded that she didn't see "on the
chart where 8 is." She indicated that what she could not see is
what is corresponding to the current target or goal.

8:33:36 AM

LAURA  ACHEE, Research and Communi cations Liaison, Al aska
Per manent Fund Corporation, Departnent of Revenue, in response
to a question from Representative Gardner, expl ai ned:

W don't have all of the possible portfolios; so, the
triangles that you're looking at that are nunbered -
we don't have those in your packet. What we do have
are the main points - the blue box, the green box, the
brown box, the purple box - and those are on page 5.
And, unfortunately, they're not |abeled so clearly
that you can immedi ately spot them but they match up

in color. ... For instance, the brown box is | abel ed,
"expected return equals 8.5 percent," and so, if you
ook on page 5, there's a colum [with a matching
title] ..., and ... that shows you the asset

al l ocation that corresponds to that point.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 12, 2005



8:34:23 AM

CHAI R SEATON said what is being considered in HB 215 is changi ng
the philosophy from having the legislature dictating what the
basket of investnments will be to requiring the prudent-investor
rule to be used for the managenent of the permanent fund.

8:34:46 AM

MR. BURNS, in response to a question from Representative Gatto,
said there is an existing definition of the prudent-investor
rul e.

8:34: 59 AM

M5. ACHEE said the idea of the "prudent man rule" has existed
for a long time, and the prudent-investor rule was defined in
the early 90s.

8: 35: 33 AM

MR. BURNS pointed out that one of the inportant concepts of the
prudent-investor rule is that "you don't have to be right, but
you have to ... docunent ... your thought process ...." He said
he thinks that's what the board neetings are about, and that's
why there are investors and advisors. He stated, "The fund is
governed today by the prudent-investor rule and further governed
by the statutory limtations; so, we do operate as prudent
i nvestors today."

8:36: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO gave opposite exanples of what two
different investors may call "prudent." He asked, "Isn't that
kind of a self concept?”

8:36:32 AM

MR. BURNS replied that both of Representative Gatto's exanples
would defy [the tern] prudent investor, because they |ack
diversity, which is necessary. He stated, "A very inportant
thing today is Jlack of correlation.” He explained that
portfolios were previously constructed whereby a great deal of
thought was given to each particular asset. Today, he
continued, the same thought is given to the asset, but also to
how it interacts within the whole portfolio. He said it's
inportant to have things that don't <correlate, but rather

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 12, 2005



respond to different things. He added, "A lot of those
[uncorrel ated] assets that we're talking about are really not
available to us today, and that's, | think, one of the things
that's inpeding our performance, or holding us back."

8:37:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked if it would follow the prudent-
investor rule to borrow noney on $400 mllion at standard bond
rates and then pay it back with permanent fund earnings. He
said, "I'm thinking about the Anerada Hess [Corporation]-type of
approach that the House is contenplating. Does that follow the
prudent -i nvestor rul e?"

8:38: 43 AM
MR. BURNS responded as foll ows:

W would actually not be naking that investnent. I
think from just the financial mathematics, any tine
you can borrow tax exenpt and invest taxable ..., or
use it in a taxable fashion, | think that makes ... a
great deal of sense. The Anmerada Hess [ Corporation] -
that's not a decision that the trustees would nake, so
it doesn't fall wunder the prudent-investor [rule];
that's not an investnment that they would be nmaking, or
the leverage is a decision that they would not be

making .... They would continue to invest the Anerada
Hess [Corporation] dollars just as they did the rest
of the fund.
8:39: 58 AM
CHAI R SEATON, in response to further comment s from

Representative Ranras, asked that the discussion be focused on
t he i ssue at hand.

8:40: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked M. Burns if he knows of anyone who
is or may be opposed to the change proposed in HB 215.

8:40: 33 AM
MR BURNS said the permanent fund has historically been

supported in changes to its asset mx by the |egislature. He
said the only reluctance he has heard from sone people is that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 12, 2005



perhaps this [change] should be taken nore increnentally. He
said, "I think with the asset types that we're talking about -
that doesn't really work." He offered an exanple as foll ows:

W have a commitnent today under the basket clause of,
| believe, $600 million to private equity. W have a

comr tnment today of ... about $240 million to private
equity of that commtnment of $600 nillion. Actual |y
outstanding, that people have drawn down, is $2.6
mllion. So, there's a real execution risk in trying
to increnentally do this in a process that's
increnental already .... W're |ooking at - today -
our commtnent to private equity. And to get to the

poi nt where we want to be, we need to commt nore than
we want to get to, just because it takes so long. And
some of them you have returns starting to conme back
before the noney is actually drawn down. So, you need
to conmt beyond what you want. |If you have statutory
[imtation, that's a real problem

MR. BURNS offered an exanple regarding the University of Al aska
f oundat i on.

8:42:54 AM
REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS noved to report HB 215 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal

notes. There being no objection, HB 215 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

HB 238- PUBLI C EMPLOYEE/ TEACHER RETI REMENT

8:44: 31 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 238, "An Act relating to contribution rates for
enpl oyers and nenbers in the defined benefit plans of the
teachers' retirenment system and the public enployees' retirenent
system and to the ad-hoc post-retirement pension adjustnment in
the teachers' retirenent system requiring insurance plans
provided to nenbers of the teachers' retirenent system the
judicial retirement system the public enployees' retirenent
system and the former elected public officials retirenent
systemto provide a list of preferred drugs; relating to defined
contribution plans for nenbers of the teachers' retirenent
system and the public enployees’ retirement system and
providing for an effective date."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 12, 2005



[Before the conmittee as a work draft was commttee substitute
(CS) for HB 238, Version 24-LS0761\L, Craver, 4/8/05.]

8:44: 42 AM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to a series of 15 tables show ng
the "Projected Values for Health Reinbursenent Accounts,” which
were added to the conmttee packet to replace an inaccurate set
of tables previously in the packet.

8:46: 18 AM

KATHERI NE SHOW5, Staff to Representative Paul Seaton, Al aska
State Legislature, on behalf of Representative Seaton, sponsor,
remnded the commttee that the retirenent for all t he
categories about to be discussed is set at 30 years in HB 238.

8:46:38 AM

MR. BRAD LAWSON, Mercer Human Resource Consulting, referring to
the 15 tables, reviewed the contents page, which lists the types
of accounts, and read as foll ows:

PERS "other" early hire - 1% HRA

PERS "ot her" early hire - 2% HRA

PERS "other"” late hire - 1% HRA

PERS "other" late hire - 2% HRA

PERS "other" with spouse late hire - 2% HRA
PERS police/fire early hire - 1% HRA

PERS police/fire early hire - 2% HRA

PERS police/fire late hire - 1% HRA

PERS police/fire late hire - 2% HRA

10. PERS police/fire with spouse late hire - 2% HRA
11. TRS early hire - 1% HRA

12. TRS early hire - 2% HRA

13. TRS late hire - 1% HRA

14. TRS late hire - 2% HRA

15. TRS late hire with spouse - 2% HRA

©CeNoALONE

8:47:34 AM

CHAI R SEATON noted that the upper-left corner of each chart
shows the assunptions.

8:48: 44 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 12, 2005



MR. LAWSON sel ected the first chart to review the assunptions.
8:52: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked why the subsidy base is calcul ated
from 2003, when the hire date is 2005.

8:52: 20 AM

MR. LAWSON expl ai ned as foll ows:
W have the premium rate, from which we subtract a
subsidy base that's established by the |egislature,

and we arrive then at a retiree contribution. -
The subsidy base that we established at 7/1/2003 was

equivalent to the clains cost. Each retiree then is
entitled to a portion of that subsidy base towards
their health care cost. . So, the subsidy base
multiplied by the percentage determ nes the anount of
dollars that wll go towards that retiree's health
care cost, ... with the retiree nmaking up the bal ance

of the prem um
8:54:54 AM
MR. LAWBON, in response to Chair Seaton, said the subsidy base

represents the known or fixed responsibility of the system
toward the health care coverage.

8:55: 04 AM

CHAI R SEATON said this is the point, during discussion of the
bill on a previous day, when the conmmttee had to renove a
section regarding a 5 percent limt on premuns, because it is
not feasible to set that limt wth fluctuating health care
costs and service. He indicated the result is that "the 5

percent is limting the anount of escalation that the systemis
payi ng over tine."

8:55:39 AM

MR. LAWSON answered that's correct. He added, "And with the
retiree making up that remaining portion."

8:55: 50 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 12, 2005



MR. LAWSON continued with the first chart, reading the colums
fromleft to right.

8:59: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if there is a colum that totals
t he amount of contributions over the 30 years.

9:00: 10 AM

MR LAWSON noted that that anount is shown in the colum
entitled, "End of Year HRA Bal ance." He offered further
details.

9:01: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGCRUENBERG said he wants to know if there are
totals listed before interest.

9:01: 51 AM

MR. LAWSON indicated that the commttee doesn't have that
listed, but, based on a spreadsheet he had open in front of him
he said, "That is just a hair over $20,000." He continued wth
his review He noted that the pre-Medicare conposite trend
factor represents an average of nedical and prescription drugs.

9:03:17 AM

MR. LAWBON, in response to Representative Seaton, confirnmed that
the pre-Medicare conposite trend uses rounding of nunbers. He
added, "And sone of that also is an interplay of the
prescription drug assunptions, which is a higher ... starting
trend anount, and the nedical I nflation, which we have

decreasing at a slower rate, but starting at a | ower point."

9: 04: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked, "So, this nunber of $7,319 ... is
t he subsidy base of $5,962, increased by roughly 12 percent per
year for the two years here?"

9:04:45 AM

MR. LAWSON answered that's correct, but he said that 11 percent
woul d perhaps be nore accurate.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 12, 2005



9: 06: 04 AM

MR. LAWSON noted that the subsidy base increases year to year,
but at a slower pace than the conposite prem um He expl ai ned
that is because it is being limted to 5 percent, versus the 9-
11 percent seen in the prem um grow h. He pointed out that the
subsidy, beginning at age 55 through age 59, is zero. He
explained, "That is a result of the provision that the subsidy
will not begin until five years prior to Medicare eligibility.
During that five years ..., the retiree will then be responsible
for the entire prem um anount, receiving zero subsidy.” At age
60, the retiree is eligible for a subsidy. He offered further
det ai | s.

MR. LAWSON highlighted where the table shows that the retiree
would be required to nake a contribution at age 55, the year
after retirenent. The retiree would be responsible for the
entire premum and remain so for five years, until the system
sponsored subsidy begins, at which point the retiree's
contribution would drop. He explained that that's the result of
subtracting the retiree subsidy from the conposite prem um
armount .

9:11: 00 AM

MR. LAWBON, regarding the beginning year health reinbursenent
account bal ance and the health care reinbursenent "spend down,"
said the "HRA spend" anount in the first year [of retirenent]
woul d equate to the entire prem um amount for which the retiree
is responsible. He stated that after pulling that anount out,
one woul d expect a difference in the HRA bal ance; however, it is

inmportant to renmenber that the noney left wll grow wth
interest over the remainder of the year. The anmobunt in the HRA
spend colum reflects that interest. He offered further
details.

9:13:14 AM

CHAI R SEATON obser ved:

In ... the last columm and the third to the | ast
colum we have ... [$42,751], and that actually shows
a retiree contribution of that anpunt, but it's

actually being spent from the HRA Now that was an
enpl oyer contribution into the enployer-funded HRA,
but it is still noney that's available for health care

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 12, 2005



to the retiree. So, this is assum ng that noney wll

make that payment. Is that correct?
9:13: 50 AM
MR. LAWSON answered in the affirmative. He stated, "I believe
that the way the bill was witten, the paynent will cone out of
the HRA until it's exhausted, but the retiree can al so designate
that bal ance to pay for other expenses, as well, such as [a]

deductible or if they have sone other pernissible expenses that
they wanted to get reinbursed for."

9:14:14 AM

CHAI R SEATON observed that the enployee at year 32 on the table
will have to conme up with approximately $13,500 in order to
suppl enent the HRA

9:15: 02 AM

MR. LAWSON responded that's correct, "as the remainder of the
prem um contri bution."”

9:15:16 AM

CHAI R SEATON nmmde sone other observations based on the first
table. He indicated that the good thing about the table is that
it shows that there is a huge problem He said the nunbers are
"incredible to nost of wus." He offered further details. He
noted that the nedical base is one-sixth of total salary, but by
the year before retirement, 40 percent of salary is eaten up in
medi cal costs. Wth an advance apology to M. Lawson, he said,
"Actuarials are kind of fortune tellers or soothsayers, and
they're projecting out these nunbers, and they just becone kind
of incredible to ne." He said the commttee is attenpting to
create a systemthat "works within the nunbers"” and won't put an
enpl oyee at risk of losing all his/her medical [coverage]. He
stated, "W're assuming in the nodel that health care is really
only gromng at 5 percent.” However, if it grows at 10 percent,
an enployee would be paying nore in nedical than his/her tota
sal ary.

9:18:49 AM
MR. LAWBON responded that he thinks it's inportant to keep in

mnd that "these are retired nedical valuation trends" and,
according to actuarial guidelines and standards, those high

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 12, 2005



nmedi cal trends do need to decrease on a |ong-range projection

He pointed out that using 5 percent rather than the standard 3.5
percent assunption used for inflation purposes adds an el enent
of conservati sm

CHAI R SEATON said he did not intend his previous comments to be
a challenge; he wants the commttee to be aware that staying at
6 percent, rather than 5 percent, for exanple, would result in a
much greater discrepancy between the subsidy base and the
conposite nedi cal anount.

9:20: 57 AM

CHAIR SEATON said, "You can see why ny staff and 1|, and
everybody that's been trying to deal wth these nunbers, is
going kind of nuts trying to figure out what there is that can
wor k. " He warned that the legislature nust be careful not to
create a system that says a person has access to nedical care,
but he/she doesn't have noney for that access and is out of the
plan and then ineligible when he/she turns 65 because coverage
| apsed. He also warned against a system where people cannot
retire before age 65 without |osing nedical coverage. He stated
that nmedical coverage is the nost inportant conponent and that
is the challenge of the coormittee in working on HB 238.

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to the next page, which shows
the PERS "other" early hire at 2 percent. He said it shows that
"the HRA actually pays for three years and there's only [a] one-
year gap in the coverage.” He offered further details.

9: 25: 42 AM

MR. LAWSON said it's inportant to note that, under the current
system the entire gross retiree prem um cost would be paid for
by the system so that the retiree is incurring virtually no
premium sharing or contribution expenses under the current
program He conti nued:

In this 2 percent scenario, we see that the total

state subsidy of $200,000 still remains constant. And
that represents just a little bit under 40 percent of
those entire costs. By the tinme you add the HRA
rei nbursenent in, the system has contributed or been
responsible for over 67 percent of the ... retiree
health costs, at this point. And so, looking at it
from a perspective of cost share ... that's actually a

fairly large percentage or a substantial subsidy or

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 12, 2005



contribution t owar ds their heal th care costs,
particularly in relationship to |ooking at the current
mar ket pl ace and what other enployers and governnent
agenci es are doi ng.

9:27: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO nentioned that his 21-year-old daughter
signed off his plan and is [covered by the Consolidated Omi bus
Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA)], at about $900 per
nont h.

9:27:38 AM

MR. LAWSON, in response to a question from Representative Gtto
regarding the price of insurance for soneone if he/she were
self-paying, said there is a starting base of $7,318 for a group
rate. He surmsed that on an individual basis, that anount
woul d probably be closer to $10, 000-$11, 000. He said there are
two issues: One, a self-paid plan would certainly be nore
expensive; and two, it would be hard to find such a plan. He
said, "That is why access, wthout evidence of insurability is,
initself, a benefit."

CHAI R SEATON observed that the individual, even continuing on
COBRA, is "apparently costing nore."

MR. LAWSON said to keep in mnd "that we may not be conparing
appl es and apples in those two nunbers."”

9:32: 49 AM

MR. LAWSBON conpared aspects of table 4, which shows PERS "other"
late hire, to table 5, which shows PERS "other"™ with spouse at 2
percent HRA. He said, "All else remaining constant, the total
prem um anmount is actually going to double for this individual”

[with covered spouse]. He said, "So, while their contributions
will double, their HRA balance ... remins constant. Thi s
results in ... a substantial increase to the net retiree."”
9:34:20 AM

CHAI R SEATON said there is a lot for the committee to consider.
He reviewed sone previously stated considerations for the
committee to make.

9:36:41 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- April 12, 2005



MELANIE M LLHORN, Director, Health Benefits Section, Division of
Retirement & Benefits, Departnment of Admi nistration, stated that
she thinks Chair Seaton, through the tables and through his
testinmony, has accurately depicted that nedical costs are a
| arge issue and the bal ance needed by enployers to provide the
coverage and the enployees' need to have the coverage is the
i ssue before the commttee.

9:37: 08 AM

M5. SHOWS, in response to a question from Chair Seaton
suggested that the committee may want to consider the salary
| evel s as slightly inflated.

9:37:50 AM

CHAIR SEATON clarified that the average salary equals the
average salary in the system not the average beginning salary.
He al so asked that the commttee renmenber that the 1 percent or
2 percent is a percentage of the system class salary, not of
i ndi vi dual sal aries. He expl ained, "Because you can't have
di scrimnation between people that are getting paid nore and
| ess under a federal health care reinbursenent account."”

9:39: 01 AM

M5. MLLHORN said over 25 states have set their retirenent age
at 65. She said the reason is that that's when benefits
commence and that's also the age at which those retirees would
be entitled to nedical benefits.

[ HB 238 was heard and hel d.]
#

The commttee took an at-ease from 9:40:29 AMto 9:43:49 AM

SB  87-SEAT BELT VI OLATI ON AS PRI MARY OFFENSE

9:43:52 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the last order of business was
SENATE BILL NO 87, "An Act relating to notor vehicle safety
belt violations."

9:44: 03 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- April 12, 2005



SENATOR CON BUNDE, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor of SB
87, apologized for his absence from the House State Affairs
Standing Conmittee's first hearing of SB 87. He asked the
committee to indulge him while he addressed a couple of issues
that "seenmed to have been prom nent in sonme of the discussions.”
He indicated that he has heard from a countl ess anpunt of people
who have said that they don't mnd a seatbelt |aw but don't want

a primary one. The other coment heard frequently is that
people say they always wear their seatbelts; they just don't
want soneone telling themto wear it. He added, "O course, if

they always wear their belt, they would not be subject to any
penalty under this |law"

SENATOR BUNDE rem nded the commttee that there currently is a
primary seatbelt |aw for people under 16, and he observed that
"the libertarian streak of Al aska did not seem to be irritated
by that portion of a primary |aw. " The other concern that he
said he's heard voiced is that the police will use [a primry
seatbelt law] as a trunped up excuse to nmake traffic stops. He
said police have told himthat if they want to nmake a preenptive
stop, there are several issues that are far nore visible than
whet her a person is wearing a seatbelt or not. He listed some
of them

9:46: 29 AM

SENATOR BUNDE addressed the notion that "it's ny right to not
wear a belt and suffer the consequences.™ He said he would
agree with that if not for the nmatter of the inpact on the
i nsurance pool that drivers belong to that is affected by the
occurrence of accidents. He nentioned [the National Association
for Stock Car Auto Racing (NASCAR)] and said there are two
reasons NASCAR drivers are required to wear seatbelts: One is
for safety, and the other is that seatbelts keep the driver in
better control of the vehicle. He offered further details.

9:48:12 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said the state currently has a secondary seatbelt
| aw, because not having it would have cost the state a great
deal of noney - federal funds. He stated that had the
| egislature passed a primary seatbelt |aw | ast year, 7-8 Al askan
lives would have been saved, according to statistics. He said a
father who lost his 19-year-old son asked him to use his story
during testinony. He said teenagers tend to think they are
"bul l et-proof” and often don't wear a seatbelt. He stated that
with the adoption of a primry seatbelt Ilaw, the wuse of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- April 12, 2005



seatbelts would go up approximately 10-12 percent. Senat or
Bunde passed out a [photo of a vehicle accident] to illustrate
why seatbelt use is so inportant. He said people seemto accept
the notion that a snoke detector in a honme is a wi se idea, and
he nenti oned carbon nonoxi de detectors.

9:51:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked Senator Bunde to expand on his
comment regardi ng federal funds.

9:51: 31 AM

SENATOR BUNDE reveal ed that |last year the state lost $4 nmillion
in highway safety funds. He said there's a total of $18 nillion
avai lable; the first year's allotnent would be $4 nillion, then
$2 million for the next 4 years.

9:52: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked Senator Bunde if he anticipates
that a primary seatbelt |aw woul d reduce insurance rates.

9:52:25 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said he doesn't expect a reduction, but "if we can
have a decrease in the increase, | think that would be sonething
we should strive toward."

9:52: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO offered his wunderstanding that Senator
Bunde's remarks regarding the insurance rates and costs to
others has to do with the possibility that soneone nmay not be
able to pay for hospital costs and those cost would be passed
on. He said, "There's a second side to this sword, and that is:
people in a seatbelt in a mjor accident could be horribly
injured and not kill ed. And the killed person has very little
cost, but the horribly injured person could have significant
costs. So, | cannot guarantee or even have an indication that
the use of a seatbelt will save you noney." Regarding the 10-12
percent increase [in people who would wear seatbelts if there
were a primary seatbelt law], he asked if that percentage is
"from exi sting nunbers or percentage points.”

9:54: 04 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- April 12, 2005



SENATOR BUNDE responded that it's from existing nunbers. He
recollected that currently there is about an 84 percent usage
rate and a statew de survey showed that 70-75 percent supported
a primary seatbelt |aw

9:54: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the $4 mllion in federal funds
were truly |l ost or reappropriated.

9:54: 43 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said his know edge is that the $4 mllion dollars
was not received for highway safety.

9:54: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO referred to Senator Bunde's nention of
carbon nonoxi de detectors. He said not having one may risk a
person's life, but it also may risk the Iives of other people in
the sanme facility. He said, "Not wearing a seatbelt will have
no effect on ne as a passenger wearing a seatbelt.” He recalled
that Senator Bunde nentioned "that if you can just stay in your
car and nmaybe steer that you mght prevent sonething.” He
added, "Although | think in these very tragic situations,

usual |y everybody's a passenger and nobody's a driver when we
suddenly turn upside-down or roll."

9: 55: 37 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said, "I see very little difference in the
libertarian attitude of Alaskans between requiring snoke
detectors or carbon nonoxi de detectors and requiring seatbelts.”

9:56: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt the committee substitute
(CS) for SB 87, Version 24-LS0457\F, Luckhaupt, 4/11/05, as a

work draft. There being no objection, Version F was before the
comittee.

9:56: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG revi ewed the changes made to the bil

t hrough Version F. He said in current law, to "operate" a
vehicle could nean to turn on the radio or the heater, wthout
t he engi ne even being on. The |anguage on page 1, line 7 of the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- April 12, 2005



bill was changed to use the word "drive" rather than "operate".
Another term that was changed was "notor vehicle", because it
was too broad. He directed attention to the |anguage added on
page 2, which read:

(5) operators or passengers of nptorcycles
notor-driven cycles, off-highway vehicles, electric
personal nobility vehicles, snowmbiles, and simlar
vehi cl es not designed to be operated on a hi ghway.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG enphasized that "not designed to be
operated on a highway" only refers to the off-highway vehicles.
He al so pointed out that "we have limted this to highways." He
sai d highways are currently defined to include public roads.

SENATOR BUNDE said he is not aware of any enforcenent problens
that the current law and definitions had created; however, he
stated his acceptance of the changes made in Version F

9:59: 57 AM
CHAI R SEATON asked again if there was any objection to adopting
Version F. [ Although there was no response, Version F was

treated as adopted.]

10: 00: 12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = GARDNER, regarding Senator Bunde's previous
conmparison of this bill to a past bill regarding carbon nonoxide
(CO detectors, asked, "How would you feel about allow ng the
police departnent to inspect your honme for a CO detector?"

10: 01: 02 AM

SENATOR BUNDE admitted that he was "having a little fun wth
Representative Gtto." He said he thinks when there's an
accident the fire departnment "does indeed inspect.” He added
that hotel wunits have inspections. He said, "I think by your

guestion you're assumng that the police are going to make this
a maj or enforcenment issue, and I don't nmake that assunption.”

10: 01: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said she recently had occasion to ask a
friend who's a nmenber of the Anchorage Police Department if "it
would be sonething that ... traffic police would be | ooking

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- April 12, 2005



for," and [the officer] said yes. In fact, the police officer
told her that it is something they love to do; it's called
"fishing."

10: 02: 15 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said the police officer still has to prove

probabl e cause for the initial stop.

10: 02: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER responded, "But they would have probable
cause if you weren't wearing a seatbhelt.”

10: 02: 37 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said the officer would have to prove that he/she
woul d likely have seen that [before the stop]. He nentioned the
"turnstile junper laws" in New York. He said, "Wen they start
enforcing the small laws, a lot of major crimnals got captured,
too."

10: 03: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO nentioned an anendnent that would change
the fine from%$15 to $100. He asked if that woul d be offered.

10: 03: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER expl ai ned that that was an anendnent she
had considered offering; however, sonme of the |anguage in it she
t hought would not be a legal solution. She also noted that the
fine for not wearing a seatbelt in Anchorage is already $200 and
she doesn't want to add an additional $100 state fine to that
anmount .

10: 04: 12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said "operating” and "driving" only
apply to the driver, not the passenger.

10: 04: 44 AM

SENATOR BUNDE responded that that's not his wunderstanding of
current | aw.

10: 04: 57 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- April 12, 2005



CHAI R SEATON stated his understanding that current |aw provides
for both the operator and for children or passengers.

10: 05: 11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS noved to report CSSB 87, Version 24-
LS0457\F, Luckhaupt, 4/11/05 out of committee w th individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes.

10: 05: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO obj ect ed.

10: 05: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG, in response to a request for
clarification from Representative Gatto, explained that the
current bill repeals the provision of law that says a person
cannot have "a primary stop for the seatbelt,” and thus would
adopt the primary stop. He offered further details.

10: 07: 12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how an officer will know if soneone is
wearing a seatbelt.

10: 07: 30 AM

SENATOR BUNDE said he's sure there are situations where the
seatbelt would not be highly visible; however, he said an
of ficer should be able to see a seatbelt in city traffic, where
a shoul der strap would be visible.

10: 07: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS, in response to Chair Seaton, expressed
his desire to maintain his previous notion.

10: 09: 07 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Lynn, Ranras,
Gruenberg, and Seaton voted in favor of HCS SB 87, Version 24-
LS0457\F, Luckhaupt, 4/1/05. Representatives Gatto, Elkins, and
Gardner voted against it. Therefore, HCS SB 87(STA) was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Commttee by a
vote of 4-3.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- April 12, 2005



ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at
10: 09: 17 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 29- April 12, 2005



